2003

Glade Leon Parduhn and University Texaco v. Natalie Buchi Bennett : Brief of Appellant

Utah Supreme Court

STATEMENT OF JURISDICTION

Jurisdiction exists pursuant to Utah Code Ann. § 78-2-2(3)(k).

STATEMENT OF THE ISSUES

Issue No. 1: Can and should this Court on this appeal adjudicate Glade Parduhn's claim that defendants waived their defense based on Section 31A-21-104 by failing to plead it? Can and should it do so where it ignored Parduhn's claim in the first appeal, but where Parduhn preserved the claim on the first appeal, clearly presented it to the Supreme Court for adjudication, and preserved the claim on remand? This issue presents an issue of law. The issue was properly preserved for appeal by Parduhn's two motions to strike the defense, R.1147, 1399; by his presentation of the claim to the Supreme Court on the first appeal, Appellant's Brief (Jan. 24, 2002) at 9, 34, 37-39; and by his preservation of the claim on remand, R.1673-1674, 1707-1711.

Issue No. 2: If the Supreme Court retains authority to rule on the preceding claim, then (1) did the trial court err by failing to strike the defense as an avoidance that was not pleaded? and (2) was the Supreme Court therefore mistaken in remanding the case with instructions to determine who, based on § 31A-21-104, is equitably entitled to the proceeds? If the answer to both these questions is "yes," then should not the proceeds, in contract, be distributed to Parduhn as the beneficiary designated by the policy to receive the proceeds on Brad Buchi's death? Again, this issue presents an issue of law. The issue was preserved for appeal. See Issue No. 1.

Issue No. 3: Can the trial court's finding on remand that JoAnne Buchi and Brad's children are equitably entitled to the insurance proceeds be sustained where (1) the trial court refused to conduct another evidentiary hearing; (2) the court refused Parduhn's proffer on remand of evidence that would countenance against an award in equity to defendants; (3) the first trial was not calculated to determine who in equity should receive the proceeds; (4) the trial court refused Parduhn permission to present evidence reserved by a stipulation for bifurcation approved by a prior judge; and (5) the trial court, contrary to its declaration, did in fact base its findings on remand on "evidence" that defendants assured him had been presented at trial, but was not. Findings of fact in cases of equity will generally not be set aside unless clearly erroneous. Utah R. Civ. P. 52(a). Nonetheless, findings "in equity" must have some basis in the record, Bellon v. Malnar, 808 P.2d 1089 (Utah 1991), and will be reversed if the appeals court has a definite and firm conviction that the court has erred. Id. The trial court, as stated in its Ruling and Order dated May 14, 2003, declined to take new evidence "tailored to the issue before the court." Ruling at 9. Parduhn's argument and proffers on remand reserved the above issues for appeal. See Plaintiff's Memorandum in Opposition to Proposed Order [on Remand] (March 24, 2003); Transcript of Oral Argument (March 14, 2003); and Transcript of Oral Argument (May 9, 2003). Parduhn's request to put on evidence reserved by bifurcation was made, and thus preserved for appeal, at R.1466, 1469 and 1501.

Issue No. 4: It is error for the trial court to have awarded half the insurance proceeds in equity to JoAnne Buchi where (1) she has breached her fiduciary duty to Brad's estate by failing to articulate in this action its equitable claim to the proceeds; (2) there was no evidence that Brad intended JoAnne to have them; and (3) there was no evidence at trial as to JoAnne and Brad's relationship other than they were still legally married? Generally speaking, findings in equity will not be set aside unless clearly erroneous. Utah R. Civ. P. 52(b). Findings in equity, however, must have some basis in the evidence before the court. Bellon v. Malnar, 808 P.2d 1089 (Utah 1991). This argument was preserved on remand. Oral Argument (May 9, 2003); Plaintiff's Memorandum in Opposition to Proposed Order (March 24, 2003). Whether JoAnne's breach of her fiduciary duty as personal representative disqualifies her equitable entitlement under the doctrine of "unclean hands" is likely a matter of law for this Court to decide. This aspect of Parduhn's argument was made, and thus preserved, at Plaintiff's Memo., id. at 14-15.

Issue No. 5: Can an award in equity be based on an agreement that the Supreme Court previously held to be unenforceable? This issue arises as a product of the trial court's decree on remand, Ruling and Order (May 14, 2003) at 9, that it could discern the partners' intent from the buy-sell agreement and, on the basis of that intent, determine who is equitably entitled to the proceeds. This decision and rationalization, in effect, enforces against Parduhn the agreement the Supreme Court deemed was not enforceable. Plaintiff believes that this is likely an issue of law. This argument was not

expressly preserved for appeal, because it did not arise until the trial court's pronouncement in its Ruling and Order on May 9.

Issue No. 6: Can the trial court's speculation that the partners would have given the policy on Brad's life to Brad had he lived longer be sustained as anything other than speculation, and can this speculation be the basis of an equitable award of all the policy's proceeds to Brad's heirs? This was not an issue until the trial court's issuance of its Ruling and Order on May 14, 2003. Findings of fact should be sustained unless clearly erroneous. Utah R. Civ. P. 52(b). Whether the Court's finding of fact will support its award of proceeds on equitable grounds should present an issue of law.

Issue No. 7: Can an equitable award of proceeds which bypasses Brad Buchi's estate in favor of JoAnne and Brad's children be justified, given that there no longer exists an enforceable agreement that can effect a non-testamentary transfer pursuant to Utah Code Ann. § 75-6-201? Plaintiff believes this issue presents a question of law, for which no deference will be accorded the trial court's decision. This argument was made and thus preserved by Plaintiff's Memo. in Opposition to Proposed Order (March 24, 2003) at 10-11; also at Hearing Transcript (May 9, 2003) at 43-44.

Issue No. 8: Can the trial court on remand base an award in equity on an unenforceable buy-sell agreement, from which it inferred an "intent" by the partners to divert all the proceeds to the insured's survivors rather than to the beneficiary, if the buy-sell agreement was never amended to provide that one partner might have to pay the other partner \$300,000 (or \$250,000) instead of the \$100,000 on which they had agreed

in 1984? An obligation or intent based on the buy-sell agreement would no longer seem to be an issue, given that the Supreme Court previously decreed it to be unenforceable by Brad Buchi's heirs. As the Supreme Court decreed that the buy-sell agreement was no longer enforceable, it logically chose not to address Parduhn's argument on the first appeal that there was no competent evidence to show that it had been amended, relying on Oglesby-Barnitz Bank & Trust v. Clark, 175 N.E.2d 98 (Ohio App. 1959). See Appellant's Brief (Jan. 24, 2002) at 61-74. If the buy-sell agreement, notwithstanding its non-enforceability, is to be the basis of an award on equitable grounds, then the Supreme Court needs to revisit and decide the implied amendment issue that Parduhn raised and challenged on the first appeal.

Issue No. 9: Should the Supreme Court, based on the facts before the trial court, decree that Parduhn is equitably entitled to the proceeds? This agreement was preserved for appeal, by Glade having made it on remand. Plaintiff's Memo. in Opposition to Proposed Order (March 14, 2003) at 7-8. The trial court's findings to the contrary, however, should, under the traditional standard of review, be overturned only if clearly erroneous. Utah R Civ P. 52(b).

DETERMINATIVE STATUTORY PROVISIONS

Utah Code Ann. § 31A-21-104 (see addendum). Utah Code Ann. § 75-6-201 (see addendum).

APPELLANT'S STATEMENT OF FACTS

Glade Parduhn and Brad Buchi in 1979 formed a partnership, University Texaco, for the express purpose of owning and operating a service station business. They operated their business for 18 years. In the later years they were in business together, the partnership owned and operated a Texaco station at 901 East South Temple (which Brad managed) and a Chevron station at 4013 South Wasatch Boulevard (which Glade managed).

The partnership was dissolved on the partnership's sale of its two service stations and real property to Blackett Oil Company, on July 14, 1997. See Parduhn v. Bennett, 2002 UT 93, ¶ 8. The partnership then entered a winding-up phase, in which it remains. Glade and Brad met shortly after the partnership's sale of its stations for the purpose of identifying and paying partnership debts. Some were paid and some were not before Brad died in early August, 1997. Plaintiff's Trial Exhibit 6 (death certificate).

The two partners, in 1979, documented their business relationship in a written partnership agreement. Plaintiff's Trial Exhibit 1. Appended to the partnership agreement was language that functioned as a buy-sell agreement. Id. The addendum stated that each partner was insured for \$20,000 and that, should one partner die, that sum would go to the deceased partner's wife or survivors as consideration in payment by the surviving partner for the deceased partner's share.

In 1979, when the partnership was formed, Glade was married to Nedra. They had two children. Nedra died in 2002, while this case was first on appeal. Brad in 1979 was married to Lissa. They had five children, all of whom have been joined as parties. Brad and Lissa divorced in 1992. Trial Transcript, pp. 110-111.

In January 1984, the two partners amended their previous buy-sell agreement by a hand-written notation they both signed. Plaintiff's Trial Exhibit 2. Each partner purchased insurance on the life of the other in the amount of \$100,000, which was the amount that each partner agreed to pay the other's "wife and survivors" for his partner's interest should the partnership be dissolved by death of a partner.

In early 1989, the partners each applied to and acquired from Northern Life Insurance Company increased insurance policies on the other's life. Glade acquired ownership and was the named beneficiary of a whole life policy on Brad's life in the amount of \$300,000. Plaintiff's Trial Exhibit 3. Brad acquired ownership and was named the beneficiary of a whole life policy on Glade's life, but in the lesser amount of \$250,000. Plaintiff's Trial Exhibit 4. Glade and Brad cross-assigned ownership of the two \$100,000 policies they had purchased five years earlier.

The partners' 1989 purchase of the two previously identified policies, however, was not accompanied by another written amendment to their buy-sell agreement. Glade never agreed to pay more than the \$100,000 that in 1984 he agreed to pay

Brad's wife and survivors for Brad's interest, should University Texaco be dissolved by Brad's death. Trial Testimony (G. Parduhn), pp. 28-29.

The evidence at trial established that the partnership paid the premiums on the two policies. Trial Testimony, (G. Parduhn), pp. 47-48. However, each was a whole life policy, which accrued a cash surrender value that inured to the benefit of the policy's owner.

The policy at issue was owned by Glade, not the partnership. Plaintiff's Trial Exhibit 3, pp. 3, 11, and p. 2 of Application. Only Glade, as the owner (not the partnership and not Brad) had the right under the terms of the policy to change the designation of the beneficiary. Id. pp. 3 (definition of "you") and 10; Culbertson v. Continental Assur. Co., 631 P.2d 906, 910 (Utah 1981). The accumulated cash surrender value under the policy belonged to Glade.

The other policy, on Glade's life, was owned by Brad. It was not owned by the partnership, or by Glade. Only Brad, as owner of that policy, had the right to change the designation of himself as beneficiary. He, not the partnership, owned the right to the cash surrender value that accumulated under his policy.

At approximately the same time as the partners applied for and purchased the two aforementioned policies, also in 1989, Brad (as insured) and Lissa (as owner/beneficiary) applied for and purchased from Northern a third policy. This policy insured Brad's life for \$250,000. Plaintiff's Trial Exhibit 5. It designated

Brad's wife, Lissa, as the owner and primary beneficiary. His children were designated as the "contingent beneficiary." For the quite obvious reason that he would not marry her for another three years, the policy did not mention JoAnne.

Lissa thereafter, in September 1990, petitioned the court to grant her a divorce. The divorce was finalized in March 1992.

In May 1992, Brad married JoAnne Ross Williams. Trial Transcript (JoAnne Buchi), p. 151. They had no children together. JoAnne petitioned the court for a divorce in April, 1996. Buchi v. Buchi, Third District Court, Salt Lake County, Case No. 964901449. The divorce was pending but not finalized when Brad died in August 1997.

Immediately following the sale of the stations on July 14, 1997, Glade and Brad met and began the process of paying partnership bills that remained to be paid and winding up the affairs of the partnership. Trial Transcript, (G. Parduhn), pp. 35-37. Brad, as disclosed earlier, died in early August, 1997. The payment of partnership bills and the winding up of the partnership's financial affairs continued after Brad's death under the supervision of its surviving general partner, Glade. Utah Code Ann. §48-1-34. The winding up phase has included defending against three lawsuits filed against the partnership after Brad's death.

Subsequent to Brad's death, JoAnne was appointed as the personal representative of his probate estate. See JoAnne's Counterclaim, ¶ 15, R.275, 279.

Although it is hard to believe given the self-serving position she has taken in this litigation, it is a position of responsibility she still holds. In re Estate of Brad Buchi, Third District Court, Salt Lake County, Case No. 973901394. Brad did not leave a will. Trial Testimony (JoAnne Buchi) p. 153.

Subsequent to Brad's death, Lissa applied for and received the \$250,000 payable on the third policy, even though she had divorced him five years before and even though all his *future* child support obligations had been paid in advance, and satisfied. Brad and/or Lissa had paid the premiums on the policy.

Glade applied for the \$300,000 payable on the policy he owned, which he was contractually entitled to receive as the beneficiary designated by the policy. However, Natalie Buchi Bennett, Brad and Lissa's oldest daughter, wrote Northern and claimed that she, her siblings, and her mother (Lissa) were the "legal" and "proper" beneficiaries of the policy. Plaintiff's Trial Exhibit 15.

RELEVANT PROCEDURAL HISTORY OF CASE

Glade filed an action in the Third District Court, seeking a declaration that he was entitled to the proceeds. R. 1. Northern interpleaded the \$300,000 into court where, on arrangements made by Glade, it was placed in an interest-bearing account. Natalie counterclaimed, alleging that she was entitled to the proceeds. On Glade's motion (not Natalie's or Northern's) the remainder of Brad's children and JoAnne, personally and as personal representative of Brad's estate, were joined as parties.

In the counterclaim portion of her Answer, Natalie claimed that she "and her siblings, not Parduhn, are the beneficiaries of the policy, "as amended," on Brad Buchi's life." ¶ 12, R.279. She also claimed entitlement to the insurance proceeds based on Glade's and her father's buy-sell agreement, which she asserted they had amended as to amount in 1984 and then again "on September 11, 1990"¹ (a year after the 1989 policies were purchased), "to provide for \$300,000 on Buchi's life and \$200,000 on Parduhn's life." ¶ 6. Her counterclaim sought a declaration that "Glade Parduhn has no interest in the proceeds of Northern Life Insurance Policy No. NL00989085 on Brad Buchi's life." R.16. Nowhere in Bennett's Answer, Counterclaim or "Cross-claim", however, did she mention Utah Code Ann. § 31A-21-104. She did not suggest that her claim to proceeds was based on Glade's lack or loss of an insurable interest in Brad's life. She did not contend that there existed a statute that trumped the insurance contract.

Bennett's siblings and JoAnne were added as parties as a consequence of Glade's "Motion to Compel Counterclaimant to Join Necessary Parties or to Dismiss Counterclaim. R.250. This motion was granted on March 10, 1999. R.272.

On April 9, 1999, Brad's children and JoAnne, individually and as personal representative of the Estate of Brad Buchi, filed an "Amended Answer and Counterclaim." R.275. This was the final pleading filed by Brad's children and the only

¹This date refers to a handwritten note of that date, Defendant's Trial Exhibit 3, on which someone wrote that the buy-sell agreement needed to be amended. The trial court gave his note no weight in its decision that followed the first trial. R.1449.

pleading ever filed by or on behalf of JoAnne. Counterclaimants sought a declaration that they and not Glade were entitled to all the insurance contract proceeds payable on Brad's death. As before, this claim was premised on the partners' buy-sell agreement as amended in 1984, and as *allegedly* amended again "on or about September 11, 1990."

¶¶ 5, 6 at R.278. Counterclaimants alleged this made them "the beneficiaries of the policy on Brad Buchi's life." R.279 at ¶ 12. Again, the counterclaimants did not base their claim to the insurance proceeds on § 31A-21-104.

On September 21, 1999, Glade moved for partial summary judgment. Motion at R.356; Memo. at R.350. This motion sought declarations that Glade's obligation to defendants under the buy-sell agreement (assuming, *arguendo*, that it was triggered by Brad's death) could at most be \$100,000 and that his purchase obligation (if he had any) should be paid to Brad's estate. Brad's children filed a cross-motion for summary judgment. R.403, 400. JoAnne neither opposed Glade's motion nor joined in the motion filed by Brad's children.

On December 9, 1999, two months after her opposition to Glade's motion was due and only after it had been noticed up for decision, JoAnne filed a belated "Request for Stay of Proceedings." R.474. She finally retained counsel who, on January 19, 2000, converted her request for a stay into a motion. R. 483. Glade opposed the motion and the nine months' delay it would eventually produce. Memo at R.485. Nonetheless, JoAnne's request was granted.

On March 14, 2000, following expedited discovery, JoAnne filed a lengthy memorandum which opposed Glade's September 1999 motion for partial summary judgment. R.501. JoAnne opposed Brad's children to the extent they claimed that they, alone, were entitled to all the insurance proceeds paid on Brad's death. Memo. at R.502-503. JoAnne countered that she should share in the proceeds, as Brad's wife at the time of his death. JoAnne, however, avoided mention of Brad's probate estate, though she was its personal representative. JoAnne founded her argument on the partners' buy-sell agreement, which she contended had been amended in 1989 when the partners each increased their life insurance coverages (even though the policies were not uniformly increased). Memo. at R.515-518. JoAnne admitted that by the time of Brad's death, the partnership had been dissolved and that it had entered the "winding up" phase contemplated by Utah Code Ann. § 48-1-28. Memo. at R.504, 518. Nonetheless, JoAnne contended that the buy-sell agreement remained enforceable at the time of Brad's death. Eschewing her fiduciary duty as the personal representative of Brad's estate, she adopted the position espoused by Brad's children that the allegedly amended buy-sell agreement acted as a non-testamentary conduit to funnel all life insurance proceeds directly to Brad's survivors, thus by-passing his estate and its creditors. She did not, however, base her claim on Utah Code Ann. § 31A-21-104. The statute is not mentioned in her memorandum.

On March 24, 2000, the Court (Stirba, J.) entered an Amended Scheduling Order. R.617. The new Scheduling Order decreed that all motions except motions in limine were to be filed by August 18, 2000. The Scheduling Order also mandated that “Motions to Amend Pleadings . . . shall be filed on or before 4/7/2000.” **No motions to amend were subsequently filed.** The Order also set trial for December 11, 2000.

By Memorandum Decision dated May 22, 2000, R.623, the Court (Stirba, J.) denied Glade’s motion for partial summary judgment. The Court ruled that any sum that *might* be owed by Glade pursuant to the buy-sell agreement would be a non-testamentary transfer and thus, it would bypass Brad’s estate.² It agreed that JoAnne was still married to Brad when he died and therefore, would be included in the definition of “survivor” under the language of the buy-sell agreement *if* it was enforceable. R.632.³

On August 18, 2000, Glade again moved for summary judgment. R.810; Memo. R.759. The premise of this motion, unlike those before, was that University Texaco was dissolved prior to Brad’s death and,

²The Supreme Court, however, held on the first appeal that the partners' buy-sell agreement did not survive the dissolution of the partnership.

³Although it was later to recant and vacate its decision, R.1222, the court also decreed that Brad’s children and JoAnne were entitled to receive and share in at least \$100,000 of the insurance proceeds. R.633.

as such, Defendants have no rights or entitlement under a buy-sell agreement that would have become effective had the partnership, instead, been dissolved on the death of one of its partners. Parduhn, accordingly, is not obligated to pay Defendants \$100,000, or \$300,000, under a buy-sell agreement. He, therefore, is entitled as a matter of law to the \$300,000 in life insurance proceeds payable on Buchi's death, as he is the sole beneficiary of the policy.

As the partnership was dissolved prior to Brad's death⁴, Glade argued that his purchase obligation under the buy-sell agreement was not triggered and that the Utah Partnership Code should govern the division and distribution of partnership assets. R762-771, 1023-1029. Neither JoAnne nor Brad's children founded their opposition to Glade's motion on Utah Code Ann. § 31A-21-104. R.894 (JoAnne's Memo.); R. 1002 (Buchi Children's Memo). On October 27, 2000, the Court (Stirba, J.) denied Glade's motion, R.1106, concluding that there existed disputed issues of material fact.

JoAnne's insurable interest argument based on § 31A-21-104 was first raised by a pseudo "Motion in Limine," filed October 26, 2000. R.1093; Memo. at R.1096.

JoAnne, for the first time, identified the statute:

It is JoAnne Buchi's position that the entitlement to the proceeds is controlled by U.C.A. 31A-21-104 as amended. This statute requires the Court to order the distribution of the proceeds of the life insurance policy to Brad's wife and survivors since Glade Parduhn does

⁴Following trial, Judge Lubeck found and held that dissolution of University Texaco occurred on July 14, 1997. R.1448, 1451. Defendants did not appeal this ruling and, in any event, the Supreme Court agreed. Parduhn, 2002 UT 93, ¶ 8.

not have an insurable interest as of the time of Brad Buchi's death.

Motion in Limine at R. 1094. In her Memorandum, JoAnne argued that:

As of the time of Brad Buchi's death, Glade Parduhn did not have an insurable interest in Brad's life and pursuant to U.C.A. 31A-21-104, he cannot collect the proceeds from the life insurance policy.

R.1098. Glade moved to strike JoAnne's motion, R.1147, complaining that JoAnne's potentially dispositive "motion in limine" was predicated on a statute,

not before pleaded by Ms. Buchi as an affirmative defense to Mr. Parduhn's claim that he, as the owner and beneficiary of a life insurance policy, is entitled to the proceeds of the policy upon death of the insured. Moreover, JoAnne Buchi's Counterclaim is not predicated on the referenced statute.

R.1151.⁵ Faced with Glade's Motion to Strike, JoAnne withdrew her so-called "motion in limine." R.1206.

All parties were preparing for a trial scheduled for December 11. On December 5, 2000, however, the trial was "bumped" by a criminal case. R.1206, 1208. The trial was rescheduled to April 30, 2001. R.1208. The Record does not indicate why, but the April 30 trial date was also vacated. A third trial date was set for

⁵Glade also protested that the motion did not involve any evidentiary issues, but was really one for summary judgment; and that the deadline set by the Court for the filing of dispositive motions had passed two months before. R.1147, 1150.

August 21, 2001. Judge Lubeck was assigned to the case sometime after the December trial date.

Bifurcation was approved by Judge Stirba in a conference prior to the December 11, 2000 trial date. A stipulation concerning the bifurcation was signed and delivered to trial court prior to the August 21, 2001 trial, but was not stamped as filed until August 27, 2001. R.1459. The Stipulation did not contemplate a reservation of issues relevant to an equitable distribution if the policy was avoided pursuant to Section 31A-21-104. What it did contemplate was a potential set-off claim by Glade, against whatever sum the trial court might decree that he must pay to Brad's survivors under the terms of the buy-sell agreement. R.1461, ¶ 2. If the buy-sell agreement required Glade to buy Brad's half partnership interest even though the partnership had been dissolved before Brad's death, Glade contemplated that he should be allowed to set-off against such a contractual obligation the diminished value of Brad's half interest caused by Brad's dissipation of his half interest prior to his death.

On August 16, 2001, Glade filed a Trial Brief. R.1271-1294. JoAnne filed her Trial Brief the same day. R.1295-1398. Brad's children did not submit a Trial Brief.

JoAnne's Trial Brief resurrected the insurable interest/31A-21-104 argument that had briefly surfaced in October 2000, but now it was the cornerstone of her entitlement argument. R.1299 (last paragraph), 1307-1310. Glade immediately objected to the introduction of this unpleaded affirmative defense. The next day, Glade filed a "Motion for Determination that any Defense by JoAnne Buchi based on Utah Code Ann. §31A-

21-104 has been Waived.” R.1399; Memo. at R.1401. Glade’s motion was heard the day before trial, and was denied. R.1412. (Lubeck, J.)

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