2003

Glade Leon Parduhn v. Natalie Buchi, Allison Buchi, Annabelle Buchi, Lance Buchi and Jessica Buchi (the "Buchi Children") and Joanne Buchi :
Brief of Appellee

Utah Supreme Court

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

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

1. The trial court's distribution of insurance proceeds was equitable, as directed by this court, was well reasoned, and supported by law and the facts.
2. Neither Parduhn nor University Texaco had an insurable interest in the life of Brad Buchi at the time of his death and thus neither may legally obtain the insurance proceeds.
3. Without an insurable interest in the life of Brad Buchi at the time of his death, and lacking an equitable basis for disposition to it, University Texaco's motion to intervene was properly denied.
4. Since this court remanded for one purpose only, equitable distribution of the insurance proceeds by the trial court, all other purported grounds for appeal are irrelevant and should not be considered.
5. Parduhn and University Texaco have failed to marshal all evidence which supported the trial court's decision and then show that evidence was insufficient to support the trial court's decision.

ARGUMENT

A trial court's findings should not be disturbed on appeal where an appellant does not demonstrate they are legally insufficient and does not cite to the record of the trial court to demonstrate error. Burns v. Summerhays, 927 P.2d 197, 198 (Utah 1989). An appellant must properly cite to the record, not fail to provide it or obfuscate it. *See, generally*, Commercial Union Associates v. Clayton, 863 P.2d 29 (Utah App. 1993).

I. THE TRIAL COURT'S DISTRIBUTION OF INSURANCE PROCEEDS WAS EQUITABLE, AS DIRECTED BY THIS COURT, WAS WELL REASONED, AND SUPPORTED BY LAW AND THE FACTS.

This court remanded for **one** limited purpose, "for the trial court to equitably distribute the insurance proceeds pursuant to Utah Code Ann. Section 31A-21-104(5)." (Parduhn v. Buchi, et al., 2002 UT 93, p. 7, para. 17). The trial court in a meticulous and well thought-out opinion did precisely that.

First, the trial court determined that University Texaco was not the owner of the insurance policy for many reasons: Although the premiums were paid from a University Texaco checking account, that account was used to pay the personal obligations of Parduhn and Buchi, such as their truck payments, house payments and various other personal obligations. The owner listed on the policy itself was not University Texaco, but Parduhn, who lacks an insurable interest. The purpose listed on the policy for the policy was the buy/sell agreement. Buchi's former wife Lissa Buchi's uncontroverted testimony at trial was that the policy was purchased to benefit Buchi's wife and children at her instigation and suggestion. The insurance policy was never listed at any time as an asset of University Texaco Partnership, either in the documents of sale to Blackett Oil, on its balance

sheet, for tax purposes or in any other manner. These facts all militate against ownership of the policy by the partnership. The decision by the trial court that the policy was not owned by University Texaco partnership was supported by the facts, not clearly erroneous and should be given great deference.

After that determination, the court carefully considered whether Buchi's widow and children, the closest possible relatives, had a greater equitable interest in the proceeds than Parduhn, merely a former business partner, and University Texaco, a dissolved partnership which had sold substantially all its assets. The trial court concluded for many reasons, including the most obvious one, that Brad Buchi's widow and children lost more when he died due to their closer relationship as spouse and children, that they had a far more equitable interest in the proceeds. (*See generally, Judge Lubeck's May 14, 2003 Ruling and Order* pp. 7-11, Section II, **Addendum to Appellants's Brief, Tab 7**).

Judge Lubeck carefully considered the law and facts in making his decision, which must not be disturbed. "This court will disturb the findings of fact in equity cases only where the evidence clearly preponderates against them." *Baker v. Patted*, 684 P.2d 632, 634 (Utah 1984). Because of the trial court's "advantaged position" this court gives "considerable deference to [the trial court's] findings and judgment." (*Id.*; *see also, Christensen v. Abbott*, 671 P.2d 121, 123 (Utah 1983); *Dang v. Cox Corp.*, 655 P.2d 658, 660 (Utah 1982).

Here, the trial court found ample evidence which preponderated in favor of distributing the insurance proceeds to the widow and children on an equitable basis, just as this court directed in its September 6, 2002 remand opinion. Hence, summary disposition of the appeal is appropriate under Rule 10, Utah Rules of Appellate Procedure.

II. NEITHER PARDUHN NOR UNIVERSITY TEXACO HAD AN INSURABLE INTEREST IN THE LIFE OF BRAD BUCHI AT THE TIME OF HIS DEATH AND THUS NEITHER MAY LEGALLY OBTAIN THE INSURANCE PROCEEDS.

The decision of this court which ended the first appeal in this action determined that, “Parduhn lacked an insurable interest under Section 31A-21-104(1)(b), and may “not knowingly procure . . . an interest in the proceeds of [the] insurance policy.” (*Parduhn v. Buchi*, et al., 2002 UT 93, p. 6, para. 16). Since he is unable to knowingly procure the proceeds (as this court has determined) Parduhn apparently hopes to knowingly procure them indirectly through the intervention of the now defunct partnership which this court determined was “dissolved . . . prior to [his partner] Buchi’s death” (*Parduhn v. Buchi*, et al., 2002 UT 93, p. 3, para. 8). Parduhn cannot obtain the insurance proceeds indirectly through University Texaco partner[ship] when he is statutorily and by this court’s decision prohibited from doing so directly.

Further, and perhaps even more importantly, if Parduhn had no insurable interest in Buchi’s life after the partnership had been dissolved, the partnership itself after dissolution, no longer had an insurable interest in Buchi’s life at the time of his death. Section 31A-21-104, Utah Code Ann. thus prevents both Parduhn and University Texaco partnership from obtaining the insurance proceeds.

III. WITHOUT AN INSURABLE INTEREST IN THE LIFE OF BRAD BUCHI AT THE TIME OF HIS DEATH, AND LACKING AN EQUITABLE BASIS FOR DISPOSITION TO IT, UNIVERSITY TEXACO’S MOTION TO INTERVENE WAS PROPERTY DENIED.

Without an insurable interest in the life at Brad Buchi’s life at the time Buchi died, and without any other equitable basis superior to that of the Buchi Children and widow, University Texaco’s motion to intervene was properly denied. A trial court’s determination regarding joinder of parties should not be disturbed absent a clear abuse of discretion, State By and Through Utah State Dept.

of Social Services v. Psychic, 924 P.2d 882, 887 (Utah 1996), especially where, as here, a party's cause of action is statutorily prohibited. Summary disposition is appropriate because Section 31A-21-104, Utah Code Ann., prohibits both Parduhn and University Texaco from obtaining an interest in the insurance proceeds, as they had no insurable interest when Mr. Buchi died.

IV. SINCE THIS COURT REMANDED FOR ONE PURPOSE ONLY, EQUITABLE DISTRIBUTION OF THE INSURANCE PROCEEDS BY THE TRIAL COURT, ALL OTHER PURPORTED GROUNDS FOR APPEAL ARE IRRELEVANT AND SHOULD NOT BE CONSIDERED.

Parduhn's appeal goes way beyond whether the trial court equitably distributed the proceeds, which was the only issue for which this case was remanded. If the trial court had granted the relief now sought by Parduhn, it would have acted beyond the limited and sole scope of the remand proceedings, to equitably distribute the proceeds.

In another case on appeal for the second time, this court determined the trial court had acted beyond the limited scope of authority granted to it on remand, which was for the sole purpose of determining attorneys' fees. *Cabrera v. Cottrell*, 694 P.2d 622, 624 (Utah 1985). Parduhn's purported grounds for appeal to the extent they seek review of more than the limited question of whether the trial court equitably distributed the insurance proceeds, are irrelevant and should not be considered. However, because they have been raised, the Buchi Children respond to the issues raised by Parduhn and University Texaco as follows:

Parduhn's claims it was error for the trial court to not have granted his October 2001 summary judgment motion. This claim can only succeed if there were no disputed material facts and only one legal conclusion could be drawn from those undisputed facts. **Rule 56(c), Utah Rules of Civil Procedure.**

There was a sworn statement from Brad Buchi's widow that the insurance policy in question

was intended for Brad Buchi's family, not for Parduhn. **R.521, paragraphs 12-13.** This alone is enough to thwart Parduhn's summary judgment motion. **Webster v. Sill**, 675 P.2d 1170 (Utah 1983) Also, the trial court properly determined that it was contested "whether the partnership was dissolved by the sale of the two service stations to Blackett Oil or the death of Brad Buchi" **R.1107.**

The court determined that "even it is assumed the partners were in the process of dissolution, there are disputed issues regarding whether the partnership agreement and its buy-sell provision remained in full force and effect. Accordingly, Plaintiff's Motion for Summary Judgment is denied." **R.1108.** The court ruled correctly. In **Jackson v. Dabney**, this court determined that even if the facts set forth in the motion for summary judgment were not contested, as they were here, summary judgment is still inappropriate if reasonable minds could differ on the legal conclusions to be drawn from those facts. **645 P.2d 613, 614-15 (Utah 1982).** Stated another way, summary judgment is properly granted only when no genuine dispute exists as to material facts, *only* one legal inference or conclusion can be drawn from those undisputed material facts, and the moving party is entitled to judgment as a matter of law. **Prichard v. State**, 788 P.2d 1178, 1184 (Ariz. 1990) (*en banc*).

Parduhn argued that sale of the gas stations amount to a dissolution, but now argues to the contrary due to his lack of an insurable interest.

V. PARDUHN AND UNIVERSITY TEXACO HAVE FAILED TO MARSHAL ALL EVIDENCE WHICH SUPPORTED THE TRIAL COURTS DECISION AND THEN SHOW THAT EVIDENCE WAS INSUFFICIENT TO SUPPORT THE TRIAL COURT'S DECISION.

When challenging a trial court's decision, the appellant must marshal all the evidence supporting the trial court's findings of fact and then show that evidence to be legally insufficient to support its conclusions of law. **See, e.g., Breinholt v. Breinholt**, 905 P.2d 877 (Utah App. 1995).

Parduhn and University Texaco have failed to marshal all the evidence supporting the trial court's findings of fact and failed to show that evidence is legally insufficient to support the trial court's conclusions of law and decision.

No evidence was presented at trial that Brad Buchi and Parduhn intended that if Buchi died, Parduhn would be entitled to the insurance proceeds. **R.1455.**

If Parduhn, in addition to the partnership assets were entitled to the proceeds of the policy on Brad Buchi's life, Parduhn would receive a double recovery in the form of both the insurance proceeds and Brad Buchi's half of the partnership. There is no factual evidence or basis for a legal conclusion Parduhn should retain his interest in the partnership and also obtain the insurance proceeds on Brad Buchi's death.